
United Natiom 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

TENTH SESSION 
Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 22 : 
Report of the Director of 

and Works Agency for 
Near East (concluded) 

the United Nations Relief 
Palestine Refugees in the 

103 

Chsirman: Prince WAN WAITHAYAKON (Thailand). 

AGENDA ITEM 22 

Report of the Director of the United Nations 
Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees 
in the Near East (A/2978 and Add.I, A/3017, 
A/ AC.80/L.6) (concluded) 

1. Mr. SHAWARBI (Yemen) thought that the 
plight of the Arab refugees was largely due to the conti­
nued failure to implement General Assembly resolutions. 
That failure had been caused by the attitude of Israel, 
which was all the more illogical in that the State of 
Israel itself had come into being as the result of a 
General Assembly resolution. Not until the relevant 
General Assembly resolutions came into force, or at 
least until the refugees had been given the opportunity 
of choosing between resettlement and repatriation, as 
the Director of the United Nations Relief and Works 
Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East had 
suggested, could the Committee discuss development 
projects. 
2. He regretted that the three-Power draft resolution 
(A/ AC.80jL.6) had tried to transfer responsibility for 
the settlement of so large a part of the refugees to 
private organizations. The problem was too grave and 
too tragic for any private organization. The question 
of the additional claimants for relief was part of the 
refugee problem as a whole, and the United Nations 
could not evade its responsibility. For those reasons, 
his delegation would be unable to support the draft 
resolution. 
3. Mr. KING (Liberia) said that his delegation was 
anxious that a practical solution. acceptable to both 
parties to the dispute, should be found to the entire 
question of the Palestine refugees. 

4. His delegation deeply appreciated the work of the 
Agency and its Director, and fully realized the benefits 
which would accrue to the entire Near East when the 
vast rehabilitation scheme in process of negotiation was 
eventually put into effect. But the increase in numbers 
of the refugees was adding steadily to the responsibilities 
of the Agency, and that was a matter of concern when 
it was remembered that the Agency's lifetime was 
limited. 

5. The political aspect of the refugee problem was 
being stressed more and more with the passage of time, 
and the debates in the Committee had provided evidence 
of :-trong feeling on Loth sides. His delegation had 

103 

AD HOC POLITICAL COMMITIEE, 2(f.h 
MEETING 

Wednesday, 30 November 1955, 
at 3.15 p.m. 

New York 

accordingly been gratified to read in the Press that there 
were signs that an agreement might be reached between 
the Arab States and Israel. Up to that point, his delega­
tion had seen no possibility of reaching a practical 
solution to the problem through the draft resolution 
submitted by Turkey, the United Kingdom and the 
United States, and had been intending to abstain from 
voting on it. It had felt that, by adopting that draft 
resolution, the United Nations would be evading its 
responsibility for the maintenance of world peace, to 
which the present situation in the Near East undoub­
tedly constituted a threat. Such an evasion would be a 
serious blow to the prestige of the Organization. 

6. In view of the new possibilities for negotiations, he 
would be able to vote for the draft resolution, and he 
would join with previous speakers in an appeal to the 
Arab States and Israel to settle their differences in an 
atmosphere consonant with the United Nations Charter. 
It should be the primary concern of the General Assem­
bly to help to create such an atmosphere. 

7. Mr. WADSWORTH (United States of America) 
said that, after consultation with the other sponsors of 
the draft resolution, he was offering some further com­
ments on the text. The draft resolution was designed 
primarily to provide directives for the operation of the 
Agency during the next year. It also made an ~p~~al 
for continued support of the Agency. It was very similar 
to General Assembly resolution 818 (IX) adopted the 
previous year, which had earned many favourable votes, 
including those of the Arab States. 

8. :\Iuch comment had been caused by paragraph 3 of 
the operative part of the draft resolution, an~l the lJnited 
Kingdom repre,:;;entative, in reply to a questiOn from the 
~vrian representative, had said that the paragraph harl 
h~'n intended as a general request. That was incked 
the case; no particular Government wa,; excluded from 
the request, which referred to all the Governments of the 
area. The same principle applied to the projects men­
tioned, which need not he taken as meaning only those 
now under consideration. The paragraph should not be 
construed as imposing any new commitments on 
anybody. 

<). \ Yith regard to the allegation made by some speakt>r:­
that p;nagraphs 6 and 7 transferred responsibility ior 
the other claimants for relief to the Arab State~. lw 
would remind the Committee that the Agency had never 
assumed responsibilitv for those claimants or proYided 
them with relief. Th~ draft resolution recognized that 
there were other needy people in the area, and made an 
appeal for help from charitable organizations. There wa-; 
every sympathy with the claimants, anrl the United 
States Government had been making arrangements with 
the Agency to provide certain food supplies for them. 
but he did not think that thev should he included on the: 
relief rolls and thus increas~ the Agency's tremendous 
responsibilities. He was already concerned at the lack 

:\,/AC.80,1SRZ4 



104 General Assembly- Tenth Session- Ad Hoc Political Committee 

?f ~nancial support for the Agency, which was making t~e principal oil-producing and oil-marketing compa-
It difficult for It to meet even the present requirements. mes. 
10. There was an urgent need for the settlement of 15. The rehabilitation budget called for the expenditure 
the political issues which had been debated at length in of $92.6 million for the fmancial year 1955 to 1956, 
the Committee. The Governments of the United States, although in all likelihood only a small part of that sum 
the United Kingdom and others were actively co-operat- \vould actually be needed. The first part of the rehabili-
ing in seeking a solution, but those issues, however im- tation budget covered the Agency's education program-
portant, should not be allowed to deflect the General me, currently foreseeable small-scale rehabilitation pro-
Assembly from the immediate task of providing, through jects and the general costs of rehabilitation services, and 
the Agency, the best obtainable life for the Arab refu- would require not less than $16 million during the finan-
gees. cial year. The Agency believed that it could finance the 
11. Mr. LABOUISSE (Director of the United Na- outlay by calling in outstanding pledges of funds for 
tions Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees rehabilitation purposes. The second part of the rehabili-
in the Near East) said that the Committee's discussions tation budget totalled $76.6 million for commitments 
had thrown light on some of the problems confronting which he hoped could be made during the year in con-
the Agency. He would not reply to some of the com- nexion with the Y armuk-Jordan Valleys and the Sinai 
ments that had been made, as a reply would serve no projects, but for reasons with which the Committee was 
useful purpose at that time. He would merely reaffirm familiar, it was not certain that the Agency would be 
the views set forth in his report (A/2978) and in his able to make substantial commitments for those projects 
introductory statement (13th meeting) to the Com- before 30 June 1956. 
mittee. 16. Nonetheless, it was very important to proceed with 
12. In order to obviate certain difficulties and mis- the projects. They would absorb some of the refugees, 
understandings that might arise, he wished to comment would be useful to the countries in which they were con-
on some points of the three-PO\ver draft resolution (A/ structed and their completion would not prejudice any 
AC.80/L.6). He was the servant of the General Assem- existing rights of the refugees or the terms of any ulti-
bly from which he derived his powers and responsibi- mate political settlement of the refugee problem. If it be-
lities but on occasion he had encountered a lack of under- came possible for the Agency to proceed with the pro-
standing of the extent and the limits of his authority. jects, additional funds would be needed and he hoped 
Some thought that the Agency commanded unlimited that the requisite pledges would be given, pledges which 
funds and that it was within the Director's discretion could be called in at the proper time. 
to say whether or not the Agency would provide a par- 17. The Agency had requested an increase of $14 mil-
ticular service. At times, when the Agency had said that lion in its working capital to provide for the time-lag 
it could not undertake certain tasks, it had been sub- between the expenditure of funds and the receipt of 
jected to severe public criticism, largely on the erro- contributions. 
neous theory that the Agency was in some way respon-
sible for the creation of the refugee problem and, hence, 18. The delays in the receipt of contributions were 
that there should be no limits to what it could do. Ac- mechanical but nonetheless real, and unless monies to 
cordingly, it was essential that the Director should be increase the working capital fund were forthcoming, 
able to explain the precise conditions and limits of the the Agency would have to continue the expedient of 
tasks entrusted to the Agency by the General Assembly. drawing temporarily upon rehabilitation funds. As the 
1 w· available funds for rehabilitation projects were being 
3. tth reference to the third paragraph of the pre- used up, another solution would soon be required. The 

amble and to operative paragraph 1, the budget for most desirable arrangement would be for Governments 
relief envisaged the expenditure during 1955-1956 of to transmit their relief contributions earlier in the year. 
$26.8 million, a sum sufficient only for the continuation To that end, the Agency had proposed that its accounts 
of relief services at current levels to the same catego- should be placed on a calendar-year basis, and as there 
ries of people. As the Committee knew, he would like 
to improve the standards of relief, but that would be had been no objection to that proposal, the necessary 
impossible unless additional funds were received. Yet arrangements were now being worked out. 
he had felt in duty bound to recommend to the Agency's 19. With regard to operative paragraph 4 of the draft 
Advisory Commission that an effort should be made to resolution, as he had told the Committee at the ninth 
improve standards in certain areas. The special report session (37th meeting), he had interpreted the General 
of the Advisory Commission (A/3017, paras. 10 to 13) Assembly's instructions on the issuing of rations to eli-
discussed the proposed improvements which would re- gible children in Jordan to mean that the Agency was 
quire the expenditure of $1.7 million for the first year. to grant them rations as soon as possible, to the extent 
But the present position was that the Agency could not that savings under the improved registration system 
expand or improve its relief operations under the relief would permit. His special report concerning other clai-
budget of $26.8 million. mants for relief ( A/2978/ Add.l) made it clear that if 
14. Paragraph 13 of the Advisory Commission's re- rations were to be granted to all eligible children in 
port was particularly noteworthy. It requested the Di- Jordan hitherto not on the Agency's rolls, the Agency 
rector to make a world-wide appeal to all oil-producing would either have to receive additional relief contribu-
countries and to all companies engaged in the produc- tions or ineligible persons now receiving relief would 
tion or marketing of oil for gifts of kerosene for distri- have to 'be removed from the rolls. As no additional 
bution to the refugees. He had discussed that question funds had been made available for relief purposes, he 
at a recent pledging conference of the Negotiating Com- interpreted operative paragraph 4 as a confirmation of 
mittee for Extra-Budgetary Funds and would like to the position approved by the Assembly in 1954. 
repeat the appeal now. The Agency's staff would help 20. Through the procedures described in the special 
any Governments responding to it to work out the de- report, and with the co-operation of the Jordan Govern-
tails. Letters on the subject would shortly be sent to ment and of the refugees, the Agency would begin as 



24th meeting - 30 November 1955 105 

soon as possible to remove ineligibles from the relief 
rolls and to transfer their rations to eligible children. 
He had also proposed that a maximum of 10,000 addi­
tional rations should be issued to the extent that the 
results of verification of the lists of refugees permitted. 
He hoped that the proposed procedures, which would 
benefit the refugees as a \vhole, could be carried out 
promptly. 
21. \iVith regard to operative paragraphs 5, 6 and 7, 
in accordance with the Assembly's request, he had sub­
mitted a special report on the question of other clai­
mants for relief in which he had drawn attention to the 
serious need of additional assistance for them. As the 
Agency's financial position would not permit it to par­
ticipate in such additional assistance, he understood 
operative paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 to mean that it was not 
authorized to assist the claimants, except in the special 
cases already provided for as in past years. 
22. He thanked the Committee for the tributes that 
had been paid to the Agency and to its staff. He hoped 
that during the coming year, further efforts would be 
made by all concerned to improve the conditions in 
\vhich the Agency carried out its day-to-day operations. 
He knew that the representatives of the host countries 
would endeavour to convince the officials of their Gov­
ernments and the refugees of the Agency's need for 
their full co-operation. He was always more than willing 
to discuss with the Governments of the area any diffe­
rences of view that might arise and to work out solutions 
that would improve the conditions in which the Agency 
operated in a manner consonant with its position as an 
organ of the United Nations and with its terms of refe­
rence. The Agency would do its utmost to co-operate 
with the host Governments in order to ensure the effi­
cient discharge of the tasks for the greatest possible good 
of the refugees. 
23. During the debate, reference had been made to the 
desirability of co-operation in the appointment of Agen­
cy staff. It was a fundamental policy of the Agency to 
employ staff native to the area, and particularly refu­
gees to the fullest possible extent, having regard to 
technical qualifications and the applicant's willingness to 
act with the objectivity required of a United Nations 
official. Staff were recruited from outside the area only 
when qualified local applicants could not be found. While 
he was prepared to consider the recommendations of 
both host and contributing Governments concerning 
staff, the final decision must rest with the Agency. If a 
staff member selected by the Agency proved objection­
able to the Government of the country in which he was 
to work, the Government should so inform the Agency, 
giving the reasons underlying its objections. 
24. During the debate, conflicting opinions had been 
expressed on the origins of the Palestine problem and 
on where responsibility for the plight of the refugees 
should lie. Political statements of that nature were not 
irrelevant, for the sources of the Palestine problem were 
indubitably political and the solution of the problem 
would necessarily involve difficult political decisions. 
While it would not be appropriate for him to enter into 
the political aspect of the problem, it was incumbent on 
him to draw attention to the close relationship between 
the Agency's ability to discharge its responsibilities and 
the general political situation. 
25. The hard realities of the refugee problem- pro­
viding the refugees not only clay-to-day relief, but also 

Printed in Canada 

with an opportunity to work and to settle in a country 
offering them the prospect of becoming self-supporting 
-confronted the Agency with many formidable obsta­
cles both material and psychological. He earnestly hoped, 
therefore, that regardless of their differences of views, 
all Governments would offer tangible as well as moral 
support to the Agency in performing its task of bringing 
material help to the refugees and preparing them for a 
better life. 
26. The CHAIRMAN put the three-Power draft 
resolution (A/ AC.80jL.6) to the vote. 

At the request of the representative of Syria, a vote 
was taken by roll-call. 

Haiti, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman, was 
called upon to vote first. 

In favour: Haiti, Honduras, Iceland, Israel, Liberia, 
Luxembourg, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zealand, Nica­
ragua, Norway, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Sweden, 
Thailand, Turkey, United Kingdom of Great Britain 
and Northern Ireland, United States of America, Yugo­
slavia, Argentina, Australia, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, 
Canada, Chile, China, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Den­
mark, Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Ethiopia, 
France, Greece, Guatemala. 

Agai11st: None. 
Abstaining: India, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Lebanon, 

Pakistan, Philippines, Poland, Saudi Arabia, Syria, 
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics, Venezuela, Yemen, Afghanistan, 
Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Czecho­
slovakia, Egypt. 

The draft resolution was adopted by 38 110fes to none, 
with 19 abstentions. 
27. U HLA MAUNG (Burma) said that his delega­
tion had been in favour of those provisions in the draft 
resolution whic.h accepted international responsibility for 
the refugees and expressed support for, and apprecia­
tion of, the Agency's work. In present circumstances, the 
problem could not be solved by international action 
alone. The United Nations, not being a world govern­
ment, could not impose any solution which did not rest 
on the full co-operation of the parties directly concerned. 
28. The draft resolution did not entirely reflect that 
viewpoint and his delegation had consequently been un­
able to support it as a whole. 

29. Mr. CARAYANNES (Greece) had voted for the 
draft resolution without enthusiasm, since it offered little 
immediate prospect of alleviating the refugees' situation. 
At least, however, the draft was confined to the practi­
cal tasks which the Agency had to face, and to the bud­
getary limitations involved. Had the Agency's financial 
position permitted, it would have been only natural and 
human to take some action in support of the popula­
tions referred to in operative paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 of 
the draft resolution, but in the circumstances, the text 
adopted seemed to reflect the only possible course of 
action. His delegation had voted for it in that spirit, 
and his Government would try to maintain its contribu­
tion at the present level. 

30. The CHAIRMAN thanked the Director of the 
Agency and the representative of the Hashemite King­
dom of the Jordan for their contributions to the discus­
ston. 

The meeting rose at 4.15 p.m. 

Q-77111-January 1956-1,900 


